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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857

603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext 9474

Fax:603-271-4230, TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

March 8, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to enter into a sole source agreement with Institute for Community Alliances
(Vendor #301842-6001), 1111 - 9th Street, Suite 380, Des Moines, lA 50314, in an amount not to
exceed $453,354, for the operation and maintenance of the New Hampshire Statewide Homeless
Management Information System to be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval through June 30, 2021. 52% Federal and 48% General Funds.

Funds are available in the following accounts in State Fiscal Year 2019, and are anticipated
to be available in State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the
price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office,
without further approval from the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS:
HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM;

State Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number Amount

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD 1 $39,570

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD 1 $21,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD 1 $21,000

Sub Total $81,570

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS:

HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING-SHELTER PROGRAM;

State Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD 2 $140,474

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD 2 $11,706

Sub Total $152,180

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS:

HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM;

State Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Job Number Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD 3 $109,802

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD 3 $109,802

Sub Total $219,604

Grand Total $453,354
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EXPLANATION

This agreement is sole source because HUD requires HMIS grant funds to be utilized
exclusively through a single, established, State Sponsor Agency capable of maintaining consistent,
statewide services for over thirteen thousand (13,000) individuals annually. The knowledge,
training, and licensing required to perform this role are so specialized that only this vendor, the sole
nationwide HMIS lead agency that offers vital, in-state support, is capable of serving as the Sponsor
Agency.

The purpose of this request is to secure contracted services required for the operation of the
New Hampshire Homeless Information System (HMIS) through. June 30, 2021. The previous
contractor, for the past eight years, formally announced on June 11. 2018 they will no longer
provide HMIS services to the State beyond the term of their current contract. The Bureau of
Housing Supports (BHS) consulted with the Technical Assistance Collaborative, U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) approved technical assistance provider, and found the
proposed new contractor, a nationwide non-profit, who is the lead HMIS provider for over thirty
other Continua of Care across the country and is the only nationwide HMIS lead agency that offers
in-state support. The new contractor will use the same HMIS program, hardware and software
platforms as the previous HMIS provider, as well as having the same contract provisions bound by
the same federal and state guidelines.

The New Hampshire Department of Information Technology (DolT) has reviewed the
proposed contract #2019-026, as posted on July 19,'2018, and has issued a DolT approval letter
which is included with this agreement package. The web-based HMIS is regulated through policies
and procedures that all participating shelters and programs are required to follow. The policies and
procedures define responsibilities by all system users in actions that include system security, local
system administration, and client confidentiality. This is the only HMIS project funded by HUD in
New Hampshire and is consistent with the centralized, statewide architecture developed under HUD
guidance and adopted by the New Hampshire Continuums in 2002.

Alternatives to contracting these services could include utilizing funds from local community
organizations such as emergency homeless shelters, however this would result in a decentralized
data system that could only be supported in regions able to accrue necessary local funds for
software and services. Another option Is to build an in-house system using DolT staff. When
considered, it was determined.that DolT lacked the resources to create such a system.

The web-based HMIS provides value to the Department through improved capacity to
measure and serve homeless populations while ensuring federal regulatory compliance. Collateral
project goals are to use HMIS software to improve housing sen/ice resource sharing, automated
eligibility determinations, and linkages to mainstream assistance programs. An additional benefit is
improved coordination of essential services and supports that address homelessness.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement has the option to extend for up
to five (5) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall
continue after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for services
provided after June 30, 2019, unless and until an appropriation for these services has been
received from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SPY 2020-2021 biennium.

Should the Governor and Executive Council determine not to approve this request, New
Hampshire homeless shelters and permanent and supportive housing and outreach programs,
which currently receive federal funding, may not be able to utilize the federally mandated HMIS and,
therefore, may no longer be eligible to receive that federal funding. This could impact the
operational capacity of many community programs supporting, the homeless as well as possibly
eliminating many full-time jobs.
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Source of Funds: 52% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development, Continuum of Care and Emergency Solutions Grant Programs, Office of Community
Planning and Development, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Numbers (CFDA) #14.267
and 14.231 and 48% General Funds.

Area Served: State\wide.

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

rey Meyers
rommissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



STATE OF HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., poncord, NH 03301
Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulet

Commissioner

March 11,2019

Jeffrey A. Meyers, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a sole source agreement with Institute for Community
Alliances (ICA) of Des Moines, lA 50314 (Vendor #301842-BOO1) as described below and referenced as
DoITNo. 2019-026.

This is a request to enter into a sole source contract to secure services for the operation of
the New Hampshire Homeless Information System (HMIS). The previous contractor, for
the past eight years, formally announced they jwill no longer provide the services beyond
their present contract. Bureau of Homeless ?nd Housing Services consulted with the
Technical Assistance Collaborative, US Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD), found the proposed new contractor, a nationwide non-profit, who is the lead
HMIS provider across the country and is the only nationwide HMIS lead agency that
offers in-state support.

The amount of the contract is not to exceed $453,354.00, and shall become effective

upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is later, through
June 30, 2021.

A copy of this letter should accompany t
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for

DG/ik/ck

DoIT #2019-026

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DolT

le Department of Health and Human Services'
approval.

Sincerely, l|

Denis Goulet

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Subject: Continuum ofCare. Homeless Management Information System. SS-2019-BHS-03-HMIS

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that Is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

I.I State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Institute for Community Alliances
1.4 Contractor Address

I Ml - 9th Street, Suite 380

Des Moines, lA 50314

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

515-246-6643

1.6 Account Number

05-95-42-423010-7927-

102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

June 30,2021

1.8 Price Limitation

$453,354

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director

1. 10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

I.M (^ertlTr^BlorSignature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

David Eberbach, Executive Director

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of Iowa , County of Polk

On ^ , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

\ Commission Number 761240
My Commission Expires
December 23. 20tg:M

1 .13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

Kimberly Grandstaff, Fiscal Manager

14 State Agency Sigaature

Dates

. 15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

ChiUhn-r q DC/fe WacJiU'
IJ6 Approval b^he^.H. Department of A'dmini^ration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

17 Approval by the/<^^rney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

On:

1.18 Approval^Sy"the Go^rnory^nd Executive Council (if applicable)

On:By:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identi fled in block 1.1 ("State")' engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case

the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the Slate Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,

including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months affer the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days af^er giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATVACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from '
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than flffeen (15) days affer the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE, in

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain In force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $ 1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
Slate of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the e.xpiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers' Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 'A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement

are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the Slate to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid. In a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Homeless Management Information System

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services:

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees to comply with the program narrative, budget detail and
narrative, and amendments thereto, for the Homeless Management Information
System (HMIS) as approved by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) and by the New Hampshire Bureau of Housing Supports (BHS),
Division of Economic and Housing Stability (DEHS), Department of Health and Human
Services (DHHS), hereafter referred to as the State, and any federal requirements
applicable to HMIS under the Continuum of Care (CoC) or Emergency Solutions Grant
(ESG) programs, or other federal programs requiring HMIS participation.

1.3. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.4. Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State relative to the CoC program are contingent upon receipt of federal funds under
the CoC Grant. The State has applied for the CoC Grant and will continue to perform
due diligence in the application process. However, the State makes no representation
that it will receive the funds. In no event shall the State be liable for costs Incurred or

payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior to the State's receipt of
federal funds applied for in the CoC Grant.

1.5. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall
continue after June 30,2019, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments
for services provided after June 30, 2019, unless and until an appropriation for these
services has been received from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the
SPY 2020-2021 biennium.

1.6. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has identified Institute for
Community Alliances as a "Contractor" in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

2. Scope of Services:

2.1. The Contractor shall provide data base management services for the HMIS that is
used to collect client-level data and data on the provision of housing and services to
homeless individuals and families and persons at risk of homelessness.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide database management activities as outlined and
identified as the "HMIS Lead Org" in, but not limited to, the NH HMIS Governance
Model June 2018, and as amended, incorporated by reference to this Agreement.

Institute for Community Alliances Exhibit A Contractor Initials V—^
88-2019-BHS-03-HMIS Page 1 of 4 7
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Homeless Management Information System

Exhibit A

2.3. The Contractor shall use software/information system in accordance with the NH HMIS
Governance Model in Section 2.2 above, and as approved by the NH HMIS advisory
Committee.

2.4. The Contractor shall implement and maintain the HMIS final data and technical
standards in a statewide HMIS system.

2.5. The Contractor shall ensure that the HMIS is an accurate resource for Information that

includes, but is not limited to, fulfillment of federal and state reporting requirements on
homelessness, including unduplicated counts of people served, use of services,
Coordinated Entry, and the effectiveness of local homeless assistance systems.

2.6. The Contractor shall provide and coordinate adequate staffing levels, roles and
responsibilities and financial resources needed to support the quality, technical
capacity, accessibility and function of the HMIS system.

2.7. The Contractor shall comply with the terms and conditions as established in the New
Hampshire HMIS Governance Model, Revision E, dated June 2018, and as amended,
which includes, but is not limited to;

2.7.1. The review and monitoring of the guidelines and procedures of HMIS security
and confidentiality;

2.7.2. Planning and Software Selection: HMIS Planning and Strategic Activities,
HMIS Program Milestones Development, Universal Data Elements (UDE),
Project-Specific Data Elements (PSDE), Unduplicated Client Records (UCR),
Annual Performance Report (APR) and Consolidated Annual Performance and
Evaluation Report (CAPER) Reporting, HMIS Reports;

2.7.3. HMIS Management and Operations - Governance and Management: HMIS
Governance Structure, HMIS Technical Support, HMIS Software Technical
Support, HMIS Information Technology (IT) Issue Tracking, HMIS IT Issue
Monitoring (Community Level), HMIS Staff Organization Chart, HMIS Software
Training, HMIS User Feedback, System Operation and Maintenance;

2.7.4. HMIS Management and Operations - Compliance Monitoring: HMIS
Management Issues, HMIS Program Milestone Monitoring, Agency and
Program HMIS Participation, Participation in Notice of Funding Availability
(NOFA), Longitudinal Systems Analysis (LSA), and System Performance
Measures, Client Acknowledgement, Data and System Security;

2.7.5. HMIS Management and Operations - Data Quality: Data Quality Standards,
UDE, PSDE, Data Quality Reports to be regularly run and provided to
participating programs, Data Quality Reports provided to the Community
Planning Entity, Data Quality Reports compared to data standards; and

2.7.6. HMIS Policy Development and Oversight: Client Confidentiality and Privacy
Training, COC System Performance Measurement Training, COC Community
Planning Goals and Objectives Training, Business Practices Training, Program
Funding Training and Orientation, Participating Agency Documentation,
Participation Rates, Policies and Procedures, Agency Participation

88-2019-BH8-03-HMI8 Page 2 of 4
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Agreements, Data Sharing Agreements, HMIS End-User Agreements, Client
Acknowledgement, Data Release.

2.8. The Contractor shall maintain a HMIS problem tracking system and collaborate with
the HMIS software contractor to manage all software operations including; supporting
installation, upgrades, and software problems.

2.9. The Contractor shall ensure that accurate and timely data are entered into New
Hampshire's HMIS by providing participating agencies of NH-HMIS with support that
includes, but is not limited to:

2.9.1. Software access;

2.9.2. Technical and reporting assistance;

2.9.3. Training;

2.9.4. Policy guidance; and

2.9.5. Security assessments.

2.10. The Contractor shall provide a comprehensive monitoring and data validation process
for all participating agencies, and will report results of those processes to the State as
requested.

2.11. The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that are
applicable to the funding of the services, operations, prevention, acquisition, or
rehabilitation. Appropriate records shall be maintained by the Contractor and made
available for review by the State to document actual funds received or denials of
funding from such public sources of funds.

3. Program Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall provide a report to the Department and the COC no less than
seven (7) calendar days prior to the submission date identified by HUD that includes,
but is not limited to, by service modality:

3.1.1. HMIS Annual Progress Reports for each NH Continuum of Care (CoC), as
required by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD);

3.1.2. HMIS data necessary for the Annual Point-in-Time Count, as required by HUD;

3.1.3. Longitudinal System Analysis (LSA) for each CoC, as defined by HUD;

3.1.4. HMIS data required for successful completion of funding applications by each
CoC, as specified in the HUD Notice of Funding Availability: and

3.1.5. Annual Reports for Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness
per SAMHSA/PATH requirements.

3.1.6. Annual System Performance Measures as required by HUD.

3.2. Failure to submit above reports in agreed upon timelines will result in the delay or
withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received in a manner that is
consistent with the requirements of the State.

Institute for Community Alliances Exhibit A Contractor Initials
SS-2019-BHS-03-HMIS Page 3 of 4

Date

(5^



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Homeless Management Information System

Exhibit A

3.3. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions, pertaining to this
contract, of representatives of the State or Federal agencies who may conduct a
periodic review of performance or an inspection of records.

4. Data Security:

4.1. The Contractor shall provide confirmation of a biannual security assessment of HMIS
software, performed by an Independent third-party security Contractor, to verify that
the environment containing the Contractor's project data is secure. Broader

Contractor-wide assessments that include the project's systems are acceptable. The
Contractor shall provide confirmation of this assessment to DHHS.

4.1.1. Certification of this testing will be provided to DHHS Information Security. The
objective of said security assessment is to identify design and/or functionality
issues in infrastructure of systems that could expose Confidential Data, as well
as, computer and network equipment and systems to risks from malicious
activities. Within 30 days after the biannual assessment has been performed,
the Contractor will provide DHHS Information Security with a report of security
issues that were revealed. Within 90 days of the assessment the Contractor
will provide DHHS Information Security with a remediation plan. The
Contractor and DHHS will mutually agree which. If any, security issuers
revealed from the assessment will be remediated by the Contractor.

5. Contract Administration

5.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings
requested by BHS, including training in data security and confidentiality, according to
state and federal laws. To the extent possible, BHS shall notify the Contractor of the
need to attend such meetings five (5) working days in advance of each meeting.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS or designee may observe performance, activities
and documents under this Agreement. The Contractor shall inform BHS of any staffing
changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

5.3. Contract records shall be retained for a period of five (5) years, or as required by
applicable state and federal laws, following completion of the contract and receipt of
final payment by the Contractor, or until an audit is completed and all questions arising
there from are resolved, whichever is later.

6. Deliverable

6.1. The Contractor shall provide accurate and timely reporting, in Section 3 above and in
accordance with the New Hampshire HMIS Governance Model June 2018, and as
amended.

institute for Community Alliances Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. Homeless Management Information System (HMIS):

1.1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price
Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

1.2. This contract is funded with 48% general funds and 52% federal funds as follows;

1.2.1. NH General Funds

Program Title: State Grant in Aid (SGIA), HMIS
Total Amount HMIS not to exceed Sub Total: $219,604;

July 1, 2019-June 30, 2020 not to exceed: $109,802
July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021 not to exceed: $109,802

1.2.2. Federal Funds

CFDA #: 14.231

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)

Program Title: Emergency Solutions Grant Program (ESG), HMIS

Total Amount HMIS not to exceed Sub Total; $81,570;

April 1, 2019-June 30, 2019 not to exceed: $39,570

July 1, 2019-June 30, 2020 not to exceed: $21,000

July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021 not to exceed: $21,000

1.2.3. Federal Funds

CFDA#: 14.267

Federal Agency: HUD

Program Title: Continuum of Care Program (CoC), HMIS

Total Amount HMIS not to exceed Sub Total: $152,180;

July 1, 2019-July 31, 2019: nottoexceed $11,706

August 1, 2019 - July 31, 2020: nottoexceed $140,474

Funds allocation under this agreement for CoC, HMIS, Manchester:

HMIS: $50,322

Administrative costs: $1.631

Total program amount: $51,953

Funds allocation under this agreement for CoC, HMIS, Nashua:

HMIS: $12,170

Administrative costs: $304

Total program amount: $12,474

Funds allocation under this agreement for CoC, HMIS, Balance of State:

HMIS: $74,079

Administrative costs: $1.950

Total program amount: $76,047

1.2.4. Total amount HMIS not to exceed Grand Total: $453,354

Institute for Community Alliances Exhibit B Contractor Initials ^
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1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services In Exhibit A, Scope of Service In compliance with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded
Contractor's current and/or future funding.

2. Financial Reports

2.1. As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following;

2.1.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in accordance with
2 CFR part 200.

2.1.2. One (1) copy of the audited financial report within thirty (30) days of the completion of said
report to the State at the following address:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

2.2. Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with
procedures, requirements, and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.

2.3. If the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200, the Contractor shall
submit one (1) copy of an audited financial report to the Department utilizing the guidelines set
forth by the Comptroller General of the United States in 'Standards for Audit of Governmental
Organizations. Program Activities, and Functions,' within ninety (90) days after contract
completion date.

3. Project Costs; Payment of Project Costs; Review by the State:

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term "Project Costs" shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Project Activities, as
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in accordance with Public
Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised from
time to time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the services to be performed under this
Agreement in accordance with the Continuum of Care Program Regulations, published at 24
CFR Part 578, the State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual,
eligible expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this agreement. Eligible expenditures shall
be in accordance with the approved line item not to exceed an amount as specified In this
Exhibit, and defined by HUD under the provisions of P.L. 102-550 and other applicable
regulations.

3.3. Matching Requirements: The Contractor must match all grant funds, except for leasing funds,
with no less than twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other sources
for ESG, SGIA & COC. For Continuum of Care geographic areas in which there is more than
one grant agreement, the twenty-five (25) percent match must be provided on a grant-by-grant
basis. SGIA funds require a twenty-five (25) percent contractor match of funds or in-kind
contributions from other sources. Cash match must be used for the costs of activities that are

eligible under subpart D of 24 CFR 578.

Institute for Community Alliar»ces Exhibits Contractorlnitials,

SS-2019-BHS-03.HMIS Page 2 of 4 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Homeless Management Information System

Exhibit B

3.3.1. Cash sources. Notwithstanding 2 CFR 200.306(b)(5), the Contractor may use funds from any
source, including any other federal sources (excluding Continuum of Care program funds), as
well as State, local, and private sources, provided that funds from the source are not
statutorily prohibited to be used as a match. The recipient must ensure that any funds used to
satisfy the matching requirements of this section are eligible under the laws governing the
funds in order to be used as matching funds for a grant awarded under this program.

3.3.2. In-kind Contributions:

3.3.2.1. The Contractor may use the value of any real property, equipment, goods, or services
contributed to the project as match, provided that if the recipient or subrecipient had to
pay for them with grant funds, the costs would have been eligible under Subpart D, or,
in the case of HPCs, eligible under 24 CFR 578.71.

3.3.2.2. The requirements of 2 CFR 200.306, with the exception of 2 CFR 200.306(b)(5)
apply.

3.4. Schedule of Payments: Reimbursement requests for all Project Costs shall be submitted by
the tenth (10th) of each month for the previous month and accompanied by an invoice from
the Contractor for the amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request
form as designated by the State, which shall be completed and signed by the Contractor.
Invoices shall be submitted promptly to the address listed above in section 2.1.2. Exhibit B.

3.5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to the
HMIS Contract Administrator.

3.6. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available.

3.7. The Contractor agrees to keep records of their activities related to Department programs and
services, and shall provide additional financial information if requested by the State to verify
expenses.

3.8. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the Annual Performance Report, Termination Report or Audited
Financial Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all
payments made to date. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of expenses
that are not determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual

expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures, informing the
Contractor of any such disallowance. If the State disallows costs for which payment has not
yet been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor
pursuant to this agreement are subject to recapture. The funds authorized to be expended
under this Agreement shall be used only for services of the Homeless Management
Information System Project and administration provided by the Contractor for the project
period and operating years of the Continuum of Care Program as approved by HUD and in
accordance with the Continuum of Care Program Regulations, published at 24 CFR Part 578.

3.9. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified
in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit 8.

3.10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with any
Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and
conditions of this agreement.

Institute for Community AJIiances Extilbit B Contractorlnitials.
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4. Use of Grant Funds:

4.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits
within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be
made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the
Governor and Executive Council if needed and justified.

4.2 Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with
procedures, requirements, and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.

4.3 Conformance to 24 CFR 576.107: Emergency Solutions Grant funds are to be used only in
accordance with HMIS Component Eligible Costs.

4.4 Conformance to 24 CFR 578.57: Continuum of Care Grant funds are to be used only in

accordance with HMIS Component Eligible Costs.

5. Contractor Financial Management System:

5.1 Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures
which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds and any required
nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct operations of
the Contractor.

5.2 The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with 2 CFR part
200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.
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Expense Budget Detail For State Fiscal Years 2019, 2020 & 2021

State Fiscal Year 2019:

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant

in Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

Emergency Solutions Grant
One-time ESG award

4/1/19-6/30/19

$39,570 $0.00 $39,570 $9,893

Sub Total $39,570 $0.00 $39,570 $9,893

State Fiscal Year 2020:

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant

in Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

State Grant in Aid

7/1/19-6/30/20
$0.00 $109,802 $109,802 $27,451

Emergency Solutions Grant
7/1/19-6/30/20

$21,000 $0.00 $21,000 $5,250

Continuum of Care

One-time CoC award

7/1/19-7/31/19

$11,706 $0.00 $11,706 $2,927

Continuum of Care

8/1/19-6/30/20
$128,768 $0.00 $128,768 $32,192

Sub Total $181,474 $109,802 $271,276 $67,820

State Fiscal Year 2021:

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant

in Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

State Grant in Aid

7/1/20-6/30/21
$0.00 109,802 $109,802 $27,451

Emergency Solutions Grant
7/1/20-6/30/21

$21,000 $0.00 $21,000 $5,250

Continuum of Care

7/1/20-7/31/20
$11,706 $0.00 $11,706 $2,927

Sub Total $32,706 $109,802 $142,508 $35,628

Grand Total $233,750 $219,604 $453,354 $113,341
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TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Equipment $  s.ioo'ro'p $ $  ■ ■ ■ $  ■ $ $ $  . 3.100.00 s . , . . $

Software i  ' $  - $  . - . $  ■ - . $ $ $ $  ■ " ' ' - $  :

Services $  . - . $■ $ $  . - '$ $  ■- : $ ■ . -
Personnel $ . 26.528.00 $  - $  ■ . - ' ■$ - ■ $  . . . . .$ $  " '26.528.00 $ -

Space & Operations S  9,942.00 $ $. $  .. $ "$ $  9.942.00 $ $■ :
25% Required Match $  9.892.50 $ $" 7 . - . - $  9,892.50 $ - ■$ $ $  " -
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE S  49,462.50 $ $ S  9,892.50 $ $  - ■ — $  39,570.00 $ $

3-7-/^
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BoS

Manch

Nashua

74,097

50,322

12,170

54.248%

36.842%

8.910%

1,950

1,631

304

136.589 3.885

fiBG

1  TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE 1
BOS MANCH NASHUA

NH0011 NH0023 NH0035

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET SHARE SHARE SHARE MONTHLY

Equipment $ 1,889.00 $ $ $ S 1.889.00 - $

Software $  25.707.05 $ $ • $ 25.707.05 - $

Services $  * • $ s  ■ •. ' - - $ "

..

$-

Personnel '$ ' 91,535.00 $ S  -t s - $ 91,535.00 - • $  ,

Space & Operations $ •t7,457;95 s $ s 17,457.95 . - . $

Provider Administration $ 3,885.00 s  . • - - $  - . • , $ 3,885.00 '' - u

S

25% Required Match $ 35,118.50 s $  ' s 35,118.50 S . -  1 . $  -

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $ 175,592.50 $ s' - . - $ 35,118.50 s" $  • . " .  140,474.00 •$ r'. - $ $ $  ' , - :

gsoasmdb
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Equipment '$ 1.470.00 $ $ $  . - s  . • ' " S - 1,470.00 $  - • S

Software $ 19.995.00 $ s $ s $ S 19,995.00 S S

Services $ $ $ $ s  - $ S  • - s S

Personnel S 71.385.00 $ $ $ $  ' • " . $ s 71,385.00 '$ s

Space & Operations $ 16,952:00 S $ $ $ $ S 16,952.00 s' ■ : s

Provider Administration $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ .$

25% Required Match 27,451.00 $ s $ 27,451.00 $ $ $ $

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 137,253.00 $ $ $ 27,451.00 s $  - s- 109.802.00 s"

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name 1  BUDGET 1 YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY 1  BUDGET 1 YTD MONTHLY

Equipment S 27.1.00 S S  - ' $ S. s . ' ' - 271.00 s  . . - s

Software s. 3,697.95 $  ' $■ $  ■ s $ $ 3,697.95 s _ s  .
Services Is - 1 % $ $ s $ [5 " ■ . - 1 $ $

Personnel s 13.450.00 $ $ $ s $ $ .  13,450.00 $ s

Space & Operations 3,581'.05 $ $ $ $ $  . - ! $ 3,581.05 $ $

3-7-1 i25% Required Match s 5.250.00 $ s  -■ S 5,250.00 $■ [5. - . 1 $ $

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 26,250.00 $ $ 5,250.00 $ $ 21,000.00 $ $ initials Date
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BoS

Manch

Nashua

6,175

4,194

1,014

54.248%

36.842%

8.910%

163

136

25

11,382 324

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET

,  BOS
NH0011

SHARE

MANCH

NH0023

SHARE

NASHUA

NH0035

SHARE MONTHLY

Equipment $  545.00. $  ■ ■ ■ - ■ ■ ,$ • -
' $  545.00 ;■

Software S  1,740.00 S  ' - $ - - S  1.740.00 - - -

Services S s $ S .  • -  ■ S -

Personnel .S . 7.610,65 .$ -
-  • s -  - - $  7.610.65 '  • ■ . ■

- -

Space & Operations $  ... 1,486.60 s $  . . - -  : S  1.486.60 - -  ' -

Provider Administration $  323.75 $ s - $  323.75

25% Required Match $  2.926.54 $ $  , $  2,926.54 *  * 1 $  - $  .

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $  14,632.54 $ $ $  2,926.54 $  . ; $ $  11.706.00 $ $ $ s

S'G

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE
Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Equipment s 995.00 $ ,s $ S.- . $ S 995.00 $  ■ $  ■

Software s 18.730.00 $ s S  - $ $■ S 18.730.00 $  " $

Services s $ $ s $ $ s S S  . ' -
Personnel s 71,350.00 $ " $■ . $ $ $ $ 71,350.00 s S. ■
Space & Operations 5 18.727.00 s $ $ $ s 18,727.00 s  ■
Provider Administration $ $ s s $ $ s s s
25% Required Match S 27,451.00 $ s $ 27.451.00 $ s  - $ $  ' _ - ■
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $ 137,253.00 $ s $ 27,451.00 s  ■ ■ - S s 109.802.00 $ $

ES'GlF.u

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE
Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Equipment S 365.00 $  . . - $ $ S $ • $ 365.00 $ $  . .

Software s 3.697.95 $ S  . • $ ,.s $ S 3.697.95 S $

Services $ . $ s $ s $  . . ■ $ s S

Personnel s 12,574.35 $ $ . $ $. $ $ ,  12.574.35 $
Space & Operations s .4,362.70 S S  - ■ $ $ $ $ 4.362.70 $ $ ■

25% Required Match s 5.250.00 $ s $ 5.250.00 $ $ $ $  -

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $ 26,250.00 $ $ % 5,250.00 $ $  . $ .  21,000.00 $  - ■ $

0^ 3-7-/^
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, In the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor Is permitted to determine the eligibility
of Individuals such eligibility determination shall be made In accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the Individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials

06«7/i4 Page 1 of 5 Date ^ '



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records; Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Govemmentai Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract: and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical; The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The I
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48 |CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000) |

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of j
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: OHMS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to OHMS an annuai schedule identifying ail subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

if the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings;

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is

entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: if applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE l^W: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL; Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of ail regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541 -A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10, Termination, is amended by adding the following language:

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to five (5) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number{s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:

Date Name: David Eberbach
Title: Executive Director
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs {indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

Date Name; David Eberbach
jjtle; Executive Director
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debanment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other rem^ies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
'voluntarily excluded," as used In this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that It will Include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that It is not debarred, suspended, Ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property:

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined In 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and Its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

Date Name: David Eberbach
Title: Executive Director
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act

requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
beneftts, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA)for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

1-7-11
Date Name: David Eberbach

Title: Executive Director
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

Date Name: David Eberbach
Title: Executive Director

Exhibit H - Certification Regarding Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health Information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aaareoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services,

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials —"
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Exhibit I

I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not othenvise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate:
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials
Health Insurartce Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement -p_ ~y ( Cj

Page 3 of 6 Date_£_J__'



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days fonward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the

Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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SeareQation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions {P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Institute for Community Alliances

e oKthe Contractor

Department of Health and Human Services

The State

C hu^fd//)YkkhmAi\l\
signature of Autljoftzed Representative ̂ Signature of Authorized Representative

r k()^h /iVj n David Eberbach
Name of Authorized Representative

(yi/pf/U/. 04-

Name of Authorized Representative

Executive Director

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

Title of Authorized Representative

3-7-(1
Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive CorYipensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

>7-/?
Date Name: David Eberbach

Title: Executive Director

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 14-9341732

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue In U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or more In annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above Is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above Is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to Information about the compensation of the executives In your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/DHHS/110713
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than authorized
purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable information,
whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health Information, "Breach"
shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department of
Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted services
- of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by state or
federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to Protected
Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial Information
(PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card
Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives DHHS
Confidential Data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 andthe
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes successful attempts to gain unauthorized access to a system or its data,
unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of a system for the
processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware, firmware, or software
characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or consent. Incidents include
the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss or misplacement of hardcopy
documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic documents or mail.
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is not
designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and approved,
by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open network and not
adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI, PHI or confidential
DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish or
trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed
or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American
National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information

except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a request
for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a subpoena, etc.,
without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to consent or object to
the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives of
DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing Confidential
Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have been
evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said application's
encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks or
portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvpted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential Data,
the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure. SSL
encrypts data transmitted via a Website.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit Confidential
Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit Confidential
Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be installed
on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will structure
the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.
SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will be coded for
24-hour auto-deletion cycle (I.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form It may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted under
this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees It will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place
to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End Users
in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures Its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its sub
contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for securely
disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will obtain written
certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the Contractor or any
subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery
operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of New
Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in
accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanltizatlon, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing)
as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines for Media
Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S. Department of
Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at time of the data
destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department upon request.
The written certification will include all details necessary to demonstrate dq;ta.hgs
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly evaluated by the
State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a secure
method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data by means
of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department confidential
information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery of contracted
services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential
information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from creation,
transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the media used to
store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect
potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or Department
confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End Users
in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security expectations,
and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum match those for
the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies and
procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of obtaining
and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be completed
and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system
access being authorized.
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8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior
express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office leadership
member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to prevent
future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. The State
shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from the breach,
including but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and costs
associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to the
breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects maintain
the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less than the
level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including, but not
limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS Privacy Act
Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to prevent
unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and scope of
security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements established
by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology. Refer to
Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm for the
Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident response
process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the State's Security
Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section
VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer security incident, or
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that
connect to the State of New Hampshire network.
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15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this Contract

to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to perform their
official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above, implemented
to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS under this Contract
from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, orPFI
are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being sent
to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to receive such
information.

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually identifiable
data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is physically and
technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons during duty hours
as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys, biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when stored
on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and disclosed
using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based assessment of the
circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure. This
applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through a third
party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this Contract,
including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA, and other
applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data is disposed
of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any Security
Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will: ir\^
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1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable Information is involved In Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different options,
and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contact for Information Security issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov
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CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Diane Foss, do hereby certify that:

1. I am a duly elected Officer of Institute for Community Alliances.

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on 09/26/18;

RESOLVED: That the David Eberbach, Executive Director, is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter
into the said contract with the State and to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and
any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the]] day of 20 ff .
(Date Contract Signed)

4. David Eberbach Is the duly elected Executive Director of the Agency.

(Signature of the Elected Officer)

STATE OF Iowa

County of Polk

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of 20_lf|_,

By Diane Foss.

KIMBERLY GRANDSTAFF
Commission Number 761240
My Commission Expires
December 23, 20MO\

(NOTARY SEAL)

Commission Expires: 1^X^3/0-

lic/Justice of the Pe(Notary

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1.2005
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Iowa Secretary of State

Paul D. Pate
Horn* Butlntti StrvicM SMrch Dctabatti Ontlnt Filing Elactlont Notarlta Nonprofit* Youth
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Business Entity Summary

Summary Arldress Aoertt rilifws Names Officers Slocit Search Aoaln

Print Certlffcate oi Existence

Seartthed: Institute for community alllartcM
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Bualnese No. Legal Name Status

140258 INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES Active

Type State of ITK. ModifM

Legal lA No

Expiration Data Effective Date Filing Data

PERPETUAL 1/12/1990 1/12/1990
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CODE 504 REVISED DOMESTIC NON-PROFIT
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Type Status Modinad Mama

Registered Agent or Reserving Party
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Legs) Inactive No IOWA INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

FUI Name
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DES MOINES. lA 50314
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/KCORO CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DOrrYYY)

06/28/2018

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER($), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder In lieu of such endorsemont(8).

PRODUCER 1-800-247-7756
Holmes Murphy & Assoc - WDM

PC Box 9207

Des Moinee, lA 50306-9207

tONTAiT
NAME;

PHONE FAX
lUC Nn Fxtlr (A«. Nol:

E-MAIL
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INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICS

INSURER A American Casualty Co of Reading PA

INSURED

Institute for Community Alliances

1111 9th St. Ste 380

Das Moines, lA 50314

INSURER B

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURERE

INSURERF

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: S3235492 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
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iuaaTYPE OF INSURANCE WVD POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF
IMM/DOfYYYY^

POLICY EXP
(MWPCmYYI

IHSR
LTR

GENERAL LIABILITY

Ic
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E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $ 1,000,000
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CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH DHHS
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129 Pleasant Street AUTHORUED REPRESENTATIVE
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ACORD25 (2014/01)
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<S> 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
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Institute for Community Alliances

Institute for Community Alliances

Inspiring communities to action with data-driven solutions

Purpose

The purpose of the corporation is to provide data-driven solutions and community infonnation systems
that help communities address housing instability, homelessness, food Insecurity and related issues
impacting economically vulnerable households.

The corporation engages in research and produces reports on homelessness and related issues. In
cooperation with state and federal agencies, private research firms and others, the Institute for
Community Alliances works to inform regional and national efforts to end homelessness.

11119'^ Street, Suite 380 j Des Moines lA 50314 j www.icaHiances.ore j 515-246-6643
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WILSON AND COMPANY, PLLC

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
Institute for Community Alliances
Des Moines, Iowa

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Institute for Community Alliances (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the Statements of Financial Position as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related
Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets, and Cash Flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the.financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Institute for Community Alliances as of June 30. 2018 and 2017, and the changes in,its net assets and
its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

WEST DBS MOINES: Regency West 5.4500 Westown Pkwy. Suite 140. West Des Moines. lA 50266 | P.'515-223-0002 | F. 515-223-0430

PERRY: 1307 2nd St. Perry. lA 50220 I P. 515-465-3591 | F. 515-465-3593

Americsn Institute ofCettHied Public Accountants



Other Matters

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. The
additional supporting schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are also not a required part
of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 31. 2018, on
our consideration of Institute for Community Alliances' internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

PL

(^Lu_
MERIWETHER, WILSON AND COMPAN'
Certified Public Accountants

October 31, 2018
West Des Moines, Iowa

WILCON COMPAKV, PLLC
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Statements of Financial Position

June 30,

Assets

2018 2017

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables

Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment
Furniture and Equipment
Accumulated Depreciation

Net Property and Equipment

Total Assets

$  395,660

1.288,603

1.684.463

101,578

(95.571)

6,007

$ 1,690,470

319,503

836,011
1.155.514

180,370

(169.483)

10.887

1.166.401

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities

Line of Credit

Accounts Payable
Compensated Absences
Accrued Payroll Taxes and Fringe
Deferred Revenue

Total Current Liabilities

Net Assets

Unrestricted

Invested in Property and Equipment
Undesignated

Temporarily Restricted
Dean Wright Fund

Totail Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

412.675

112.686

58,934

406,665

990,960

6,007

676,436

17,067

699,510

$ 1,690,470

75,000

112,588

80,974

46,504

387,096

702,162

10.887

432,945

20.407

464.239

1.166.401

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Statements of Activities and Changes In Net Assets

Years Ended June 30,

2018 2017

Temporarily Temporarily
- Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total

Support and Revenue ■

Government Grants and

Contract Reimbursements $4,712,421 — 4,712,421 3,518,554 - 3,518,554

Other Contracted Services 1,375,939 — 1,375,939 1,035,147 — 1,035,147

User Fees and Licenses 383,934 — 383,934 228,779 - 228,779

Interest 653 — 653 224 — 224

Dean Wright Fund - .8,893 8,893 - 10,452 ■ 10,452
Other Revenue 26,126 — 26,128 18,716 — 18,716

Net Assets Released

from Restrictions 12,233 (12,233) 9,602 (9,602) —

Total Support and Revenue _ .6,511,308 (3,340).,. 6,507,968. 4,811,022. 850 . 4,811,872

Expenses

Homeless Management
Information System 525,783 - 525,783 492,112 - 492,112

Software > Support and Licenses 501,424 — 501,424 386,741 — 386,741

Equipment 43,351 - 43,351 34,456 - 34,456

Payroll and Staffing 4,355,322 - 4,355,322 3,095,263 - 3,095,263

Space Costs 181,194 181,194 125,441 — 125,441

Operations 498,693 - 498,693 404,492 - 404,492

Administrative Costs 73,418 — 73,418 45,986 45,986

FEMA Contract 4,324 4,324 3,107 - 3,107

Depreciation 4,880 .  ~ 4,880 8,706 - 8,706

Other Operational Expenses 84,308 - 84,308 31,041 ~ 31,041

Total Expenses 6,272,697 — 6,272,697 4.627,345 — 4,627,345

Increase (Decrease) In Net Assets 238,611 (3,340) 235,271 183,677 850 184,527

Net Assets at Beginning of Year . 443,832 20,407 464,239 260,155 19,557 279,712

Net Assets at End of Year $ 682,443 17,067 699,510 443,832 20,407 464,239

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,



INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30,

2018

Cash Flows from'Operating Activities
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets
Charges to Operations Not Requiring Cash - Depreciation
(Increase) Decrease in

Receivables

Prepaid Expenses

Increase (Decrease) in
Payables and Accrued Expenses
Deferred Revenue

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Financing

Net Borrowing on Line of Credit

Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash

Cash Balances - Beginning of Year

Cash Balances - End of Year

Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosures
Cash Paid During the Years for Interest

$235,271

4,880

(452,592)

344,229

19,569

151.357

(75,000)

76,357

319.503

$395,860

$. 153

2017

184,527

8,706

(382,591)

500

49,176

181,472

41.790

75,000

116,790

202.713

319,503

216

.  )

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30. 2018 and 2017

1. Nature of Activities

Institute for Community Alliances (the Institute) is a nonprofit corporation as defined under Section 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code. The Institute was organized under the laws of the state of Iowa to develop,
Implement, and evaluate innovative housing, and related programs targeted to low-income households. The
Institute is not considered a private foundation for income tax reporting purposes.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Poiicies
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the accounting principles
appropriate for nonprofit organizations. The accounting and reporting policies of the Institute conform to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The following describes the
more significant of those policies.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements '
In August 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-PfX)ftt Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial
Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The amendments in this ASU make improvements to the information
provided in financial statements and accompanying notes of not-for-profit entities. The amendments set
forth the FASB's improvements to net asset classification requirements and the information presented
about a not-for-profit entity's liquidity, financial performance, and cash flows. The ASU will be effective for
fiscal years beginning after Decemt)ef 15, 2017. Earlier application is permitted. The changes in this ASU
should generally be applied on a retrospective basis in the year that the ASU Is first applied. Management
has not evaluated the impact of this ASU on the financial statements.

Financial Statement Presentation and Contributions
The Institute reports financial information in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
which requires the Institute to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to
three classes of net assets, and requires classification of contributions received as unrestricted,
temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted depending on donor restrictions. Contributions received
and expended in the same fiscal year are reported as unrestricted revenue.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes'of the Statements of Cash Flovirs. the Institute considers all cash in checking and savings
accounts and highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to
be cash equivalents.

Grant or Contract Reimbursements Receivable

Grant or contract receivables have been recorded at net realizable value when eligible expenditures have
exceeded contract receipts to date. There have been no bad debts and. therefore, no allowance for
uncollectible amounts has been recorded.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are recorded at cost Expenses for maintenance, repairs, and minor replacements
are charged to expense, while the cost of major replacements, betterments and acquisitions is capitalized.
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, ranging from
three to seven years.

Compensated Absences
The Institute allows for the accrual and accumulation of unused vacation time of its employees and the
payment for such absences upon termination of employment or when time off for the absence is
scheduled. The unused vacation leave at the year-end date is accrued as a liability on the financiai .
statements.

Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of cash, receivables, prepaid expenses, accounts payable, accrued expenses, and
other liabilities approximate their fair values due to the short-term maturities of these financial instruments.



Revenue Recognition
Revenues from grants are recognized to the extent that they are expended in accordance with grantor
conditions. Any .revenues that have been received but not expended are shown as deferred revenues in
the liability section of the accompanyirig Statements of Financial Position. Other revenues are recorded
when earned.

Allocation of Expenses
The Institute allocates indirect expenses and joint program direct expenses individually to programs on the
basis of hours charged by employees, or estimated benefits based upon usage or other methods to the
programs for which the cost was incurred.

Income Taxes

The Institute is currently exempt from state and federal Income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code and has been classified as an organization that is not a private foundation under
Section 509(a) of the Intemal Revenue Code. The Institute would t>e subject to federal and state Income
tax on any unrelated business income generated from activities not specifically related to its tax-exempt
purpose. No unrelated activities were conducted during the years ended June 30. 2018 and 2017, and,
accordingly, no provision has been made for income tax liabilities or expense.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during^the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifi cations

Certain recfassifications to the 2017 financial statements have been made to conform to the 2018

presentation.

3. Principal Programs
The following is a summary description of the principal programs administered by the Institute;

Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) * -
The Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) is a local information technology system'
used to collect client-level data and d^ta on the provision of housing and services to homeless
individuals and families and persons at risk of homelessness. Each Continuum of Care (CoC) is
responsible for selecting an HMIS software solution that complies with HUD's data collection,
management, and reporting standards.

Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program
The Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) program is a formula grant program. Eligible recipients generally
consist of metropolitan cities, urban counties, territories, and states, as defined In 24 CFR 576.2. ESG
funds may be used for five program components: street outreach, emergency shelter, homelessness
prevention, rapid re-housing assistance, and HMIS; as well as administrative activities. The Institute for
Community Alliances provides the HMIS services required by the ESG program, under the ESG
regulatory standards.

IFA (SAF) HMIS Implementation Project
Funding for this project is provided by the Iowa Finance Authority (IFA) through State Shelter Assistance
Funds to assist in the implementation, operation and maintenance of the HMIS for use throughout the
State of Iowa to benefit homeless shelters and service providers.

Continuum of Care (CoC) Program
The Continuum of Care (CoC) Program is designed to promote communitywide commitment to the goal
of ending homelessness; provide funding for efforts by nonprofit providers, and State and local
governments to quickly rehouse homeless Individuals and families while minimizing the trauma and
dislocation caused to homeless individuals, families, and communities by horrielessness; promote
access to and effect utilization of mainstream programs by homeless individuals and families; and
optimize self-sufficiency among individuals and families experiencing homelessness. The Institute for
Community Alliances provides the HMIS services required by the Continuum of Care program, under the
program's regulatory standards.



4. Support from Governmental Agencies
The Institute received approximately 72% in 2018 (73% in 2017) of its support and revenue from
governmental grants and contracts. A significant reduction in the level of government funding virould have a
major affect on the Institute's program activities.

5. Concentration of Credit Risk

The Institute maintains cash balances at a local bank. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insures
their accounts in an amount up to $250,000. At June 30, 2018. the Organization had $66,735 deposited in
excess of federally insured limits ($18,558 in 2017).

6. Receivables

Amounts earned but not received under contracts with program funding sources are summarized as
follows at June 30:

Due From Program 2018 2017

Alaska Coalition on Housing
and Homelessness HMIS & TA $  182,661 52,377

Iowa Finance Authority HMIS 14,966 16,906
City of Boise Idaho Contract Services 7.486 -  13,011
Minnesota DHHS Contract Services 162,647
Minnesota Housing Finance Agency Contract Services 204,951 23,879
Hennepin Co., Minnesota Contract Services 12.321 11,500
SW MN Opportunity Council Contract Services 10,000
St. Louis County HRC Contract Services 37,592 30,287
City of St Louis AHTF Contract Services 39,875 19,423
North Dakota Coalition for Homeless Contract Services 51,189
University of Vermont Contract Services 16,770
Wisconsin BOS/COC Employment Contract 67,967 .21,739
Calgary Homeless Foundation Contract Services 15,000
Various Sources Continuum of Care Program 372,546 287,044
Various Sources Emergency Solutions Grant Program 148,142 93,853
Various Sources User Licenses and Training 54,192 74,292
Various Sources Contract Services 52,945 29,053

$ 1,288,603 836.011

Property and Equipment
Equipment owned by the Institute is summarized as follows at June 30:

Cost

Current

Depreciation

Accumulated

Depreciation
Book

Value

2018

Office Furniture and Equipment $ 101,578 . 4.880 95,571 6,007

2017

Office Furniture and Equipment $ 180,370 8,706 169,483 10,887

The estimated lives used on the above equipment range from three to seven years.

Substantially all of the alwve equipment was funded under various grants with federal, state, or local
governmental entities and may revert back to these funding sources in the event such programs terminate
or the use of the property changes from Its original purpose.

In addition, any proceeds from disposal of such properties must be expended with grantor approval.



8. Line of Credit

The Organization has entered into a $200,000 non-recourse line of credit agreement with Freedom
Financial Bank. This renewable loan bears interest at 1% over prime (5.25% at June 30, 2018} and
matures on August 29, 2018. At June 30, 2018, the outstanding balance of this loan was $-0- ($75,000 in
2017). Interest costs incurred and charged to expense during the year ended June 30, 2018 totaled $153
($216 in 2017).

This loan is collaterallzed by the Organization's assets and contains various covenants and requirements
as determined by the bank.'

9. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue is summarized as folbws at June 30;

Project .  2018 2017

lA - Domestic Violence $ 22,674 $

IL - Carpenter Place Contract - 24,658

MO - Joplin Contract 11,292

VT - SSVF Contracts 20,903 19,576

Wl - ESG Milwaukee 73,399 18,082

Wl - PATH Contracts .  17,175 12,192

Wl - VORP Contracts 18,207 24,765

WY-ESG -T- 14,952

User Fees and Training 192,015 200,213

Other Contract Services 62.292 61,366

$ 406,665 387,096

10. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Dean Wright Fund
The Dean Wright Fund consists of net proceeds from fundraising events conducted by the Opening Doors
committee in Des Moines, which is established to help alleviate homelessness for those who have
difficulty locating acceptable housing. The use of these funds is restricted for the benefit of or the
purposes prescribed by Opening Doors.

11. Lease Commitments

The Institute leases office space at various locations under a non-cancelable agreements expiring through
April 30.2019. Future minimum payments due under these agreements as of June 30 are as follows:

2018 2017

2018 $ - 77,527

2019 102,830 25,262

2020 88,570 7.200

2021 63,480

2022 8,810 —

S 263,690 109,989

The Institute's rentexpense totaled $181,195 for the year ended June 30, 2018 ($125,441 in 2017).

12. Pension Plans

Effective November 1, 2014, the Institute established the Institute for Community Alliances 401(k) Thrift Plan
administered by Mutual of America. The plan Is funded by employee contributions and employer contributions
equal to 5% of employee wages. The Institute's contributions to this plan totaled $169,025 for the year ended
June 30, 2018, while employees contributed $158,454 ($121,548 and $120,555, respectively in 2017).
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13. Functional Ciassification of Expenses
The following is a summary of the principal programs and supporting services administered by the Institute
and reflected in the Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets at June 30;

2018 2017

HUD Continuum of Care $ 3.030.853 2,170.632
Emergency Solutions Grants Program 523,275 .388.419
Emergency Food and Shelter (FEMA) 5,112 3,332
Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS 16,421 12,460
lEDA Emergency Disaster 9,327 15,576
IFA ESGP/BOS HMIS Implementation Project 82.591 119,734
Projects for Assistance in Transitions from Homelessness (PATH) 32,143 26.577
MHDC Match Missouri 41.275

Total Program Activities 3,699,722 2.778.005
Property and Equipment - Net of Capitalized Costs Included Atwve 4,880 8,706
Management and General 2,568,095 1.840,634

Total Expenses $ 6,272.697 4,627,345

14. Subsequent Events
The Institute has evaluated events and transactions occurring after June 30, 2018 for potential items required
to be recognized or disclosed in the financial statements. Subsequent events were evaluated through
October 31, 2018, the date the financial statements were available for issuance.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Institute for Community Alliances
Des Moines, Iowa

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Institute for Community Alliances {a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as of June 30, 2018, and the related
Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets, and Cash Flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 31, 2018.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Institute for Community Alliances'
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Institute for Community Alliances' internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Institute for Community Alliances' internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, tp prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Organization's financial
statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis.^ A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies In internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

WEST DBS MOINES: Regency West 5, 4500 Westown Pkwy, Suite 140, West Des Moines, lA 50266 | P. 515-223-0002 | F. 515-223-0430

PERRY: ,1307 2nd St, Perry, lA 50220 | P. 515-465-3591 | F. 515-465-3593

Members American Instituie of Canified Public Accountants
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Institute for Community Alliances
Des Moines, Iowa

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Institute for Community Alliances (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as of June 30, 2018, and the related
Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets, and Cash Flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 31, 2018.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Institute for Community Alliances'
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Institute for Community Alliances' internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Institute for Community Alliances' internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A maten'al weakness Is a deficiency, or combination oil deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Organization's financial
statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency Is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Page Two

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Institute for Community Alliances' financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control or on
compliance, this report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication' is
not suitable for any other purpose.

MERIWETHER, WILSON AND COMPANY.'
Certified Public Accountants

PLL

October 31, 2018
West Des Moines, Iowa

.WILION AND CDMPANV. PI.I.C

ttrtyW NuNfcAeewwtfi
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE-FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL:PRdGRAM AND
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Institute for Community Alliances
Des Moines, Iowa

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited institute for Community Alliances' (a nonprofit organization) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on Institute for Community Alliances' major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2018. Institute for
Community Alliances' major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

i

Management's Responsibility

^  Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its
federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for Institute for Community Alliances' major federal
program based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit
of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awfards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence atxDut Institute for Community Alliances' compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Institute for Community Alliances'
compliance.

'  \

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Institute for Community Alliances complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to alcove that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the
year ended June 30, 2018.

WEST DES MOINES: Regency West 5,4500 Westown Pkwy, Suite 140, WesT Des Moines, lA 50266 | P. 515-223-0002 | F. 515-223-0430
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Page Two

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Institute for Community Alliances is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered Institute for Community Alliances' internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Institute for
Community Alliances' Internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in intemai control over compliance Is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in intemai control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of intemai control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in intemai control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report Is not suitable for any other purpose.

MERIWETHER, WILSON AND COMPANY.
Certified Public Accountants

LLC

October 31, 2018
West Des Moines, Iowa

.WILJOX AND COMPANY, PLLC
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2010

Summary of Auditor's Results

1. The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Institute for Community
Alliances.

2. Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
•  No material weaknesses were identified.

•  No significant deficiencies were reported.

3. No instances of noncompllance material to the financial statements of Institute for Community Alliances were
noted during the audit.

4. Internal Control Over Major Programs
•  No material weaknesses were identified.

•  No significant deficiencies were reported.

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Institute for Community Alliances
expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. The results of our audit disclosed no audit findings, which we are required to report in accordance with 2 CFR
200.516(a).

7. The following program was audited as a major federal program:

Program Title CFDA No. Expenses
Continuum of Care Program 14.267 $ 3.030,494

8. The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type 8 programs was $750,000.

9. Institute for Community Alliances qualified as a low-risk auditee.

Findings Related to the Financial Statements

None

Findings and Questioned Costs Related to .Federal Awards

None

Summan/ Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

None
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

July 1, 2017 Through June 30,2018

Grantor/Pass-Through Agency Grant Number

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program^
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program

IA0005L7D001508

IA0005L7D001609

IA0083L7D001500

IA0083L7D001601

IA0014L7D011609

IA0014L7D011710

IL0615L5T011500

IL0615L5T011601

MN0012L5K001508

MN0012L5K001609

MN0043L5K011609

MN0058L5K021609

MN0072L5K031609

MN0078L5K041609

MN0088L5K001609

MN0096L5K061609

MN0115L5K091609

MN0145L5K111609

MN0290L5K081603

MN0350L5K01150D

MN0350L5K011601

MN0371L5K001600

MN0377L5K011600

MN0381L5K0216a0

M00090L7P061609

M00090L7P061710

NE0011L7D011609

NE0094L7D011500

VT0005L1T001609

VT0005L1T001710

VT0051L1T00.1500

VTQ051L1T001601

VT0052L1T011500

VT0052L1T001601

WI0035L5I011609

WI0035L5I001710

WI0051L5I011508

WI0051L5I011609

WI0177L5I011500

WI0177L5I011601

WI0180L5I031500

.WI0180L5I031601

WI0192L5I021600

WI0206L5I021700

WI0211L5I031700

WY0001BBT001508

WY0001BBT001609

WY0013B8T001600
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Grant Period

INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

July 1. 2017 Through June 30, 2018

CFDA*

Number

Award

Amount

Federal

Expenses

12/01/16-

12/01/17-

12/01/16-

12/01/17-

06/01/17-

06/01/18-

12/01/16-

12/01/17-

09/01/16-

09/01/17-

09/01/17-

09/01/17-

09/01/17-

09/01/17-

09/01/17 -

09/01/17-

09/01/17-

09/01/17-

09/01/17-

01/01/17-

01/01/18-

12/01/17-

01/01/18-

12/01/17 -

06/01/17 -

05/01/18-

07/01/17-

12/01/16-

06/01/17-

06/01/18-

09/01/16 -

09/01/17-

09/01/16-

09/01/17-

06/01/17-

06/01/18-

08/01/16-

08/01/17-

12/01/16-

12/01/17-

10/01/16-

10/01/17-

10/01/17-

05/01/18-

05/01/18-

10/01/16-

10/01/17-

04/01/17-

11/30/17

11/30/18

11/30/17

11/30/18

05/31/18

05/31/19

11/30/17

11/30/18

08/31/18

08/31/18

08/31/18

08/31/18

08/31/18

08/31/18

08/31/18

08/31/18

08/31/18

08/31/18

08/31/18

12/31/17

12/31/18

11/30/18

12/31/18

11/30/18

05/31/18

04/30/19

06/30/18

11/30/17

05/31/18

05/31/19

08/31/17

08/31/18

08/31/17

08/31/18

05/31/18

05/31/19

07/31/17

07/31/18

11/30/17

11/30/18

09/30/17

09/30/18

09/30/18

04/30/19

04/30/19

09/30/17

09/30/18

09/30/17

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14:267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267 -

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

43,156

43,156

186,608

186,608

346,578
346,578

83,670

83,670

477,844

49,994

82,083

25,000

140,872

19,999

41,099

10,658

39,280

35.500

33,359

26,603

26,603

248,739

43,782

37,480

239,947

239,947

163,209

39,482

30,572

30,572

28,810

28,810

65,000

65,000

371,429

371,429

66,761

66,761

77,351

77,351

44,500

44,500

15,000

37,525

267,611

61,539

61,539

82,275

$ 11,811

15,047

66,617

99,726

319,899
41,042

47,500

55,904

150.804

49,896

82,083

24,011

140,872

7,031

41,099

10,545

39,280

26,475

31,510

26,603

24.981

173,408

21,131

25,370

225.805

30,375

163,209

29.572

27,079

4,158

420

28,810

13,966

50,318

316,698

43,954

66,373

24,780

42,397

1,741

44,500

4,764

4,341

.11,081

38,745

38,825

54,403
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)

July 1. 2017 Through June 30, 2018

Grantor/Pass-Through Agency ' ^ Grant Number

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Continuum of Care Program (Continued)
Passed Through City of Oes Moines

Continuum of Care Program IA0041L7D021508
Continuum of Care Program IA0041L7D021609

Passed Through Hawkeye Area Community Action Program, Inc.
Continuum of Care Program M/A

Passed Through the City of St. Louis
Continuum of Care Program ' M00203L7Eai1500
Continuum of Care Program M00203L7E011500

Total CFDA #14.267

Passed Through Iowa Finance Authority
Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS N/A
Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS N^A

Total CFDA #14.241

Passed Through Iowa Economic Development Authority
CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster

Community Development Block Grant 08-DRADM-232

Passed Through Iowa Finance Authority
Emergency Solutions Grant Program - Technical Assistance N/A
Emergency Solutions Grant Program - Technical Assistance N/A

Passed Through City of Des Moines
Emergency Solutions Grant Program N/A

Passed Through City of Sioux City
Emergency Solutions Grant Program E-16-MC-19-0002
Emergency Solutions Grant Program E-16-MC-19-0002

Passed Through City of Rockford
Emergency Solutions Grant Program N/A

Passed Through City of Duluth
Emergency Solutions Grant Program N/A

Passed Through City of Minneapolis
Emergency Solutions Grant Program N/A

Passed Through City of Saint Paul
Emergency Solutions Grant Program N/A
Emergency Solutions Grant Program N/A

Passed Through Hennepin County
Emergency Solutions Grant Program A177624

Passed Through St. Louis County. MN
Emergency Solutions Grant Program N/A
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Grant Period

INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)

July 1. 2017 Through June 30, 2018

CFDA*

Number

Award

Amount

Federal

Expenses

11/01/16 <10/31/17

11/01/17-10/31/18

01/01/18-12/31/18

10/01/16-09/30/17

10/01/17-09/30/18

01/01/17-12/31/17

01/01/18-12/31/18

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.241

14.241

104,873

104,873

100,000

100,000

100,000

11,754

13,394

10,000

79,612

46,851

31,944

64,128

3,030,494

6,414

4,570

10,984

01/01/17-12/31/17 14.218 24,000 9.767

01/01/17

01/01/18

12/31/17

12/31/18

01/01/17-12/31/17

10/01/16

10/01/17

12/04/17

06/01/16

06/01/16

01/01/17

01/01/18

09/01/16

09/01/16

09/30/17

09/30/18

12/03/18

03/31/18

08/31/18

12/31/17

12/31/18

08/31/17

08/31/18

14.231

14.231

14.231

14.231

14.231

14.231

14.231

14.231

14.231

14.231

14.231

14.231

110,000

110,000

9,137

14,000

17,000

29,000

8,000

18,453

11,500

11,000

4,544

13,030

50% Federal

50% Federal

22,935

14,941

6,009

3,607

11,000

13,398

8,000

9,715

11,500

8,646

4,544

13,030
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)

July 1. 2017 Through June 30, 2018

Grantor/Pass-Thfough Agency Grant Number

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Emergency Solutions Grant Program (Continued)
Passed Through Missouri Housing Development Commission
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through City of St. Louis
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through City of Omaha
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through The Center for Children, Families and the Law
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through Vermont Department of Children and Families
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through City of Madison

Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through City of Racine
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through City of Milwaukee
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Total CFDA #14.231

• Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Department of Homeland Security
Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program
Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program

Total CFDA #14.231 and Department of Homeland Security

15-712-S

17-766^E

17-767-E

17-768-E

17-769-E

17-770-E

18-771-E

18-772-E

18-773-E

18-774-E

18-775-E

55WZ0

55W20

N/A

N/A

26-0520-0243-002

03440-44054-18-ICA

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

34-3006-00

35-3006-00
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Grant Period

INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)

July 1, 2017 Through June 30. 2018

CFDA*

Number

Award

Amount

Federal

Expenses

01/31/15-09/30/17 14.231 61,866

01/01/17-03/31/18 14.231 84,000 38,418

01/01/17-03/31/18 14.231 18.900 6,787

01/01/17-03/31/18 14.231 19,974 4,949

01/01/17-03/31/18 14.231 40,000 32,339

01/01/17-03/31/18 14.231 43,050 24,229

01/01/18-03/31/19 14.231 43,050 19,076

01/01/18-03/31/19 14.231 41,000 10,134

01/01/18-03/31/19 14.231 19,974- 6,133

01/01/18-03/31/19 14.231 18,950 5,977

01/01/18-03/31/19 14.231 87,150 35,045

05/01/16-04/30/17 14.231 86,760 (323)

08/01/17-07/31/18 14.231 86,760 70,339

07/01/16-12/31/17 14.231 12,000 2,853

07/01/17-06/30/18 14.231 12,000 12,000

07/01/17-05/31/18 ,14.231 31,700 31,700

07/01/17-06/30/19 14.231 170,050 85,025

01/01/18-12/31/18 14.231 3,084 11

01/01/17-12/31/17 14.231 3,056 2,295

01/01/17-12/31/17 14.231 10,860 1,666

01/01/16-12/31/18 14.231 26,665 11,570

01/01/17-12/31/18 14.231 40,831 -

01/01/18-12/31/18 14.231 26,057 -

527,548

3,578,793

10/01/16-01/31/18

02/01/18-01/31/19

97.024

97.024

4,324

4,215

3,846

3,846
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)

July 1, 2017 Through June 30. 2018

Grantor/Pass-Through Agency

Passed Through Vermont Department of Mental Health

Mental Health Block Grant

Mental Health Block Grant

Total CFDA #93.958

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Total Federal Awards

* Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance

Grant Number

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Passed Through Iowa Department of Human Services

Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness MHOS 15-001

03150-A1624

03150-A1624
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)

July 1, 2017 Through June 30. 2018

CFDA* Award Federal

Grant Period . Number Amount . Expenses

07/01/17-06/30/18 93.150 10.887 10.887

01/01/17-06/30/18 93.958 3.000 3.000

01/01/16-06/30/18 93.958 3.000 1.947
4.947

SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

15.834

$ 3,598,473
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2018'

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal
award activity of Institute for Community Alliances under programs of the federal government for the year
ended June 30, 2018. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements
of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Institute for Community Alliances, it Is not intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of Institute for
Community Alliances.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized followirig the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts
shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to
amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. Institute for Community Alliances has elected not to use
the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Combining Statement of Activities

July 1, 2017 through June 30. 2018

HUD HUD HUD

Continuum Continuum Continuum

of Care - of Care - of Care -

Total BOS Iowa Des Molnes Sioux City

Support and Revenue
Government Grants and Contract

Reimbursements $4,712,421 360,941 89,612 26,858

Other Contracted Services 1,375,939 - —

User Fees and Licenses 383,934 - -

Interest 653 - —

Other Revenue 35,021 — —

Total Support and Revenue 6.507.968 360.941 89,612 " 26.858

Expenses

Homeless Management Information System 525,783 14,531 5,458 999

Software - Support and Licenses 501,424 26,400 7,405 1,585

Equipment 43,351 3,690 878 1,208

Payroll and Staffing 4,355,322 270;712 67,433 18,815

Space Costs 181.194 15,794 2,905 1,597

Operations - Utilities, Office, Insurance, Travel 498,693 27.910 5,479 2,805

Administrative Costs 73.418 1,904 54 22

FEMA Contract 4,324 -
—

Depreciation 4,880 - - -

Other Operational Expenses 84,308 ~ — 21

Total Expenses 6.272.697 360,941 89,612 27,052

Excess (Deficiency) of Support and

Revenue to Expenses 235.271 — (194)

Fund Transfers

Program Funds Considered Unrestricted - - — 194

Fund Balances • Beginning of Year 464.239 _

Fund Balances - End of Year $ 699,510 --



INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Combining Statement of Activities

July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018

26

Program Funds

HUD HUD" HUD HUD HUD HUD HUD HUD

Continuum Continuum Continuum Continuum Continuum Continuum Continuum Continuum

of Care • of Care • of Care - of Care - of Care r of Care - of Care - of Care -

Siouxland CE. HACAP Illinois ' Minnesota Missouri St Louis Omaha Vermont

165,343 46,851 103,404 875,099 256,180 96,072 192,781 124,751

165,343 46,851 103,404 875,099 256,180 96,072 192,781 ■ 124,751

864 246 3,662 23,677 77,457 323 1,113- 485

183 5,136 65,957 2,707 51 2,223 -

207 2,684 — 3,384 -
- 5,235 871

136,470 32,897 86,850 708,544 149,668 87,132 155,437 110,011

13,171 1,424 1,922 32,483 5,733 2,574 8,029 7,620

12,992 8,753 5,834 37,607 19,566 5,058 19,567 5,004

1,048 220 3,447 1,024 934 1,177 808

591 444

—

25

••

165,343 46,851 103,404 875,099 256,180„ 96,072 192,781 124,799

- -• -
- r- " (48)

- -
- -

.-T - 48

_ —
— —

— —
— - - -
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Combining Statement of Activities (Continued)

July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018

HUD HUD HUD HUD

Continuum Continuum Continuum Continuum

of Care - of Care - of Care - of Care -

Wisconsin Madison Milwaukee Racine

Support and Revenue

Government Grants and Contract

Reimbursements $360,652 57,322 133,550 9,105
Other Contracted Services _ _ •• _ ,

User Fees and Licenses _

Interest

Other Revenue —

Total Support and Revenue ■  360,652 57,322 133.550 9,105'

Expenses

Homeless Management Information System 21,734 226 199 6

Software - Support and Licenses 4,755 — _

Equipment 2,284 1,192 712 —

Payroll and Staffing 308,225 53,391 122,073 8,900
Space Costs 4,954 1,273 7,085 11

Operations - Utilities, Office, Insurance, Travel 17,167 1,237 2,447 187

Administrative Costs 1,533 73 1,038 1

FEMA Contract _ _

Depreciation _ — — _

Other Operational Expenses - — —

Total Expenses 360,652 . 57^392 133,554. .  9.105

Excess (Deficiency) of Support and

Revenue to Expenses (70) (4) -

Fund Transfers

Program Funds Considered Unrestricted
-- 70 4 -

Fund Balances > Beginning of Year _

Fund Balances • End of Year $
— —



INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Combining Statement of Activities (Continued)

July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018

28

Program Funds

HUD Emergency Emergency Housing IFA Projects for

Continuum Solutions Food and Opportunities lEDA ESGP/BOS Assistance in

of Care- Grants Shelter for Persons Emergency Match Transition from

Wvominq Program (FEMA) with AIDS Disaster Iowa Homeiessness

131,973 522,066 3,846 . 10,984 9,767 82,505 15,834

- -

5,437

- -

15,790

131,973 522,066 "3,846 16,421 9,767 82,505 31,624

33,782 67,182 669 492 5,193 1,901

12,216 31,677 — 1,302 1,070 7,308 957

1,302 5,124 — 53 - 533 85

73,637 357,573 ~ 13,543 7,312 47,810 26,043

593 19,218 — 411 177 3,371 1,313

9,925 38,133 •— 392 220 17,820 1,158

561 4,322 788 51 56 556 467

- 4.324 -
—

46 -- 219

132,016 523,275 5,112 16,421 9,327 82,591 32,143

(43) (1,209) (1,266) • - 440 (86) (519)

43 1,209 1,266 - (440) 86 519

_ -- — — —
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Combining Statement of Activities (Continued)

July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018

Institute Funds

Support and Revenue
Government Grants and Contract

Reimbursements

Other Contracted Services

User Fees and Licenses

Interest

Other Revenue

Total Support and Revenue

Expenses
Homeless Management Information System
Software - Support and Licenses
Equipment

Payroll and Staffing
Space Costs
Operations - Utilities, Office, Insurance. Travel
Administrative Costs

FEMA Contract

Depreciation
Other Operational Expenses

Total Expenses

Excess (Deficiency) of Support and
Revenue to Expenses

Fund Transfers

Program Funds Considered Unrestricted
t

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year

Fund Balances • End of Year

Contracted

Services.

$1,036,925

1,375,939

383,934

2796,798

264,680

330,462

14,460

1,422,477

49,536

227,182

47,132

23,966

2,379,895

416,903

(416,903)

Dean

Wright

Fund

8,893

8,893

7.181

5,052

12,233

(3.340)

20.407

17,067

Property
and

Equipment

4,860

4,880

(4,880)

10,887

Institute

Administrative

653

4,901

5,554

904

30

(551)

90,369

25,069

6,202

53.944

175,967

(170,413)

413,904

432,945

6,007 676.436

SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT



INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Schedule of Expenses

Years Ended June 30,

30

2018 2017

Expenses

Homeless Management Information System
Hosting $  482,962 448,107

Internet Expense 20,031 ' 19,059
Training 805 7,200

Custom Programming 21.985 17,746

Software - Support and Licenses
Web Design and Development 10,281 3,850

Support 268,100 138,006

Supporting Software 195,800 164,030

User Licenses 37,523 80,855

Equipment 43,352 34,456

Payroll and Staffing
Employee Background Check 2,335 147

Salary 3.508.997 2,518,840

Benefits 846,323 576,276

Space Costs 181,195 125,441

Operations

Utilities 3,274 3,118

Office Supplies 38,022 , 32,197

Equipment 19,093 16,588

Technical Support and Repair 19,211 3,577

Telephone 49,387 42,849

Printing 10,541 6,709

Postage and Delivery 2,479 2,119

Insurance 30,011 18,802

Meetings and Travel 323,712 278,533

Administrative Costs

Contracted Staff 37,489 15,982

In-Kind Student Hours 6,413

Professional Fees 44,217 30,004

FEMA Contract 4,324 3,107

Depreciation 4,880 8,706

Other Operational Expenses
Coordinated Entry Case Management 9,999 -

Supportive Services 357 -

CoC Fees 25 579

Contributions (176) 1,000

Interest 153 216

Bank Charges 3,036 2,846

Dues and Subscriptions 606 3,033

Miscellaneous 45,955 23,367

Total Expenses $6,272,697. 4,627,345

SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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1111 9TH STREET. #380

DESMOINES.IA 50314

P: 515-246-6643

Ei lNFOOICALLIANCES.ORG

Updated 2.13.2019

MEMBERSHIP OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 2018-2019

OFFICERS

First Nsme Last Name Title Domain Occupation

Diane Foss Chair State Government State Homeless Programs Coordinator - Retired

Megan Thibodeau Vice-Chair Aging Executive Director of Immanuel Pathways • Elderly Living Services

Brad Whipple Treasurer Health Foundation The Iowa Clinic

DIRECTORS

David Discher CEO Nonprofit/Funder Vice President United Way - Retired

James Swanstrom Director Health

Rose Wazny Director Government Iowa Economic Development Authority - Retired

David Yurdin Director

Health Information/

Special Populations Clinical Director -The Project of Primary Health Care



Meghan Morrow Rafterv

EXPERIENCE
1

Institute for Community Alliances-HMIS Manager Essex Junction VT 11.2015-Present
■ Manages and updates the Vermont Homeless Management Information System (HMIS)
■ Actively participates in the HUD recognized Continuums of Care and subcommittees
■  Supports the Continuum of Care Coordinated Entry process

■ Monitors the usage of agency partnership agreements, data sharing agreements, and other HMIS
governance documents

■  Provides training and technical support to partner agencies and end users to ensure proper user of the
HMIS

■  Supports grant applications as appropriate

■ Maintains current knowledge of homeless assistant programs and related initiatives
■ Oversees statewide and local level reporting

■ Creates and revises tools to ensure compliance with US Department of Housing and Urban

Development (HUD) regulations

■ Analyzes data for internal reporting and monitoring purposes
■ Supervises HMIS administration staffin Vermont

Vermont Veteran Services at UVM-Program Assistant Burlington VT 7.2013-10.2015
■ Monitor data entered in HMIS and correct data errors

■ Train staff and subcontractors to ensure proper use of HMIS

■ Collaborate with HMIS Administrator on VA data quality repository reports

■ Participate in program outreach meetings and collection of outreach data using Quickbase
■ Run HMIS reports for internal reporting and VA repository upload
■ Pre-screen potential applicant for preliminary eligibility, document initial client needs and record

screening in HMIS

■ Refer ineligible applicants to non-SSVF services

■ Communicate with program partners, Department of Veterans Affairs, shelters and other
community programs

■ Collect and record veteran and referral information In HMIS

■ Track and report monthly screening and referral numbers from HMIS
■ Work closely with program management to create program policy and procedures

■ Monitor all program communications, data quality and program document revisions

■  Stay up to date on current SSVF program policies and procedures
■ Coordinate and organize outreach events, meetings, and trainings with subjects that benefit the VVS

target audience and staff. Act as liaison for all event, meeting and training attendees
■  Point of contact for all staff IT, HR, office questions and concerns
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EDUCATION

SUNY Oneonta-B.S. Oneonta NY 5.2006

Trainings and Certifications ■' .
Family Support, Culture and Disability 12.2013

Housing First Training 7.2013
Veteran Informed 7.2013

ServicePoint HMIS Training 2013,2014,2015,2016,2017
Quickbase Webinars 2015

Making Systems Talk; HMIS and Data Tracking- NCHV Conference Washington D.C. 5.2015
Bowman Systems: Bootcamp 2016 4.2016
Mediware Customer Conference 2017 8.2017

SKILLS

Proficient with Quickbase, ServicePoint HMIS, MS Word, Power Point, Excel and Outlook,

Datatrak, Filemaker, Mac user, ACT! Program, RDP (Resort Data Program), HUD Data

Exchange, SAGE Skiing, Equestrian, Travel, Tennis, Art, Literature, Music



Jesse Dirkman

EXPERIENCE

Data Analyst^ Institute for Community Alliances (Madison, Wi) March 2014 - present
•  Produced annual reports and data dashboards on homelcssness in Wisconsin and presented results to 100+

homelessness service providers throu^oul Wisconsin, 2013 - 2015
• Queried, analyzed, and evaluated data from the Wisconsin Homeless Management Information System

(HMIS) database

•  Created report templates for a variety of audiences: funders, HMIS system administrators, CoC boards and
directors, agency administrators, etc.

•  Collaborated with the Wisconsin Department of Children and Families in researching link, between aging
out of foster carc and homelessness

•  Provided quality assurance assistance to HMIS software vendor: submitted errors found in HDD-required
reports and worked directly with vendor programmer to assist in creation of vendor reports

•  Presented at National Human Services Data Consortium conferences (Fall 2014: Creating Reproducible
Regional Progress Reports, Spring 2015: Forging Local Data Relationships-Lessons from Wisconsin
Homeless & Foster Care Youth)

Nadonal Homeless Data Fellow, Tableau Foundation Po" 2015-2016
•  Completed advanced training in Tableau software (data visualization and data dashboard software)
•  Collaborated with 9 other HMIS data analysts and system administrators in an effon to create useful system

performance dashboards for all Continua of Care

Research Analyst, Wisconsin Bureau of Supportive Housing (Madison, WI) November 2013 - March 2014
•  Developed electronic, printed and graphic portrayals of statistical data to convey the status of homelessness in

Wisconsin

• Worked to maintain data quality and completeness

Student Researcher, Research Experience for Undergraduates in Mathematics, (Milwaukee. WI) Summer 2012
•  Determined data necessary for analysis and gathered relevant data from a variety of sources j
•  Analyzed residential water usage in Wisconsin and explored the feasibility of predicting future usage as a

for-proflt venture or a supplement to conservation efforts
•  Created multiple linear regression forecasting models utilizing MaiLab and MySQL database software
•  Communicated findings to peers and supervisors via a technical report, poster presentation, PowerPoint

presentation, and blog post

Intern, Milwaukee Homicide Review Commission, (Milwaukee, WI) January-May 2012
•  Maintained Access database cataloguing non-fatal domestic violence incidents in Milwaukee, Wi
•  Conducted preliminary cross-labluations on select variables using SPSS
• Worked to initiate database logging ail Homicide Review recommendations and their statuses
•  Ancnded homicide and domestic violence reviews with police and community leaders

SKILLS/COMPETENCIES
•  Experience with database and reporting software including ServicePoint. Business Objects and Web

Intelligence, Access, FileMaker Pro, MySQL, and Qlik
•  Experience with MatLab, R, SPSS and SAS statistical software

EDUCATION

Honors Bachelor of Science Degree in Mathematics and Sociology May 2013
Marquede University. Milwaukee WI. Cumulative CP A 3.814.0
•  Marquette University Honors Program, magna cum laude
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Other requirements:
• A valid driver's license and proof of current insurance.
•  Prospective candidates will be subject to and must pass a comprehensive criminal background

check.

DESIRED QUALIFICATIONS

•  3 years of experience working specifically with individuals in programs that address the full
array of needs of persons experiencing homelessness in a diverse and multi-cultural
environment.

•  Effectively present information and respond to questions from partner agencies, end users,
governmental entities, the public and other stakeholders.

•  Get along and work effectively with others.
•  Provide technical support and training to individuals with varying levels of technical

knowledge in a non-judgmental manner.
•  Good communication skills both verbal and written.

###



ICA Position Description for
System Administrator - Homeless Management Information System (HlVt|S>—

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS

HMIS Network Manflgcmcnt

•  Provide training and technical support to partner agencies and end users to ensure proper use of
the HMIS.

o Assist partner agencies and end users to ensure data confidentiality, integrity, and
security.

o Assist partner agencies with HMIS related federal regulations and date standards,
o Work with other ICA staff to coordinate training schedules and maintain user

attendance records.

o Review system data quality regularly and conduct related training as needed,
o Work closely with partner agencies to clean up data issues and improve data quality,
o Assist the continuum of care with system performance measures and program outcome

reporting.
o Assist partner agencies in meeting reporting requirements
o Work with other ICA staff to develop and update training materials,
o Coordinate with the HMIS vendor to resolve more complicated reporting needs.

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS

Education: Possession of a Bachelors' degree from an accredited college or university with a major in
a relevant field relating to social work, sociology, or community information systems.

Experience: Minimum of two years of full-time experience or its equivalent in community
information systems and coordinated care services.

Ability to:

•  Gather and analyze data, prepare accurate reports and recommendations for the resolution of
systems issues.

•  Exercise good Judgment and discretion in handling confidential matters.
• Deal tactfully, diplomatically and objectively with consumers, providers, gov't and elected

officials, and general public.
•  Read, analyze and interpret general business periodicals, professional journals, technical

procedures, or governmental regulations.
• Travel within assigned region regularly and occasionally to regional or national meetings and

events.

• Work in an occasionally stressful environment, handle multiple tasks simultaneously, and meet
established deadlines.

• Create reports, business correspondence, and procedure manuals.

Knowledge of:
•  Basic office equipment and technology.
•  Relational database software.

• Microsoft Office Suite (Excel, Word, PowerPoint, Outlook).
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Job Title: Report Specialist Reports to: HMIS Project Manager
Job Class: HMIS Administration Location; To be Determined
Status: Full-time, Exempt

POSITION SUMMARY

Under the direction of the HMIS Project Manager, and in cooperation with other ICA team members,

the Report Specialist is responsible for creating and maintaining report templates and data

visualization tools for use by ICA, HMIS stakeholders and the broader community.

ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS

•  Create and maintain front-end development of report templates and custom reports for use by

ICA, HMIS stakeholders and the broader community.

o  Respond to requests for custom reporting

o  Ensure compliance with federal and state data standards

•  Collaborate with the Project team, ICA colleagues and external stakeholders on report design,

development, quality assurance, delivery and support.

•  Support HMIS data quality assurance and required reporting for federally and state funded

partners and programs, i.e., PIT and HIC; ESG/CAPER; LSA Project; CoC APR/CAPER; HOPWA,
PATH, SSVF, and others.

•  Engage in all portions of report delivery. Including quality assurance and user acceptability

testing, statement of work development and assigned projects management, as applicable.

•  Develop and refine report training materials for HMIS end users.

•  Assist in Helpdesk user escalation support, triage, and analytics, especially related to reports.

•  Maintain proficient working knowledge of HUD HMIS guidelines and regulations.

•  Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS AND REQUIREMENTS

Experience and Education

•  Bachelor's degree from an accredited four-year college or university or equivalent related

experience or training (i.e., information systems management, statistics, social sciences)

•  Two years of paid experience in a position with a high degree of independence and responsibility

Required Background/Knowledge

•  SAP BusinessObjects Web Intelligence (we are on 2010 version)

•  MS Access (or equivalent) database experience including query building, table linking,

form and report design, VBA and macros.

•  Microsoft Office Suite (Word, Excel, Outlook, PowerPoint, etc.)

•  Relational, associative and conditional logic database structures

Updated February 2019 IjPage



Institute for Community AlllancM

Preferred Background/Knowledge

•  Data visualization and dashboard software (I.e., Tableau, Qlik)

•  Statistical Analysis software (SPSS, STATA, Matlab, R)

• WellSky/ServicePoint or other HMIS software

•  Two years paid experience in the social services sector and/or with QA

Demonstrated Skills

•  Strong analytical, decision-making, problem-solving, organization and time management skills

•  Self-motivated with ability to work independently

•  Attention to detail and accuracy

•  Ability to support process improvement and related tasks, such as documentation, information

gathering and quality assurance

•  Understanding of how to define problems, identify /refine data points that are relevant to
producing meaningful reports, and apply logic that results in valid, quantifiable results

•  Regular, ongoing collaboration in project teams, including with remote staff

•  Cooperatively or independently author training and procedural manuals or guidelines

•  Ability to work effectively and professionally with people from diverse backgrounds

•  Ability to handle multiple tasks simultaneously, anticipate and meet established deadlines and
regularly produce high quality work products in a deadline-driven environment

Physical Requirements

Standing - Approximately less than 1/3 of on-the-job time
Walking - Approximately less than 1/3 of on-the-job time
Sitting - Approximately greater than 2/3 of on-the-job time
Reaching with hands and arms - Approximately between 1/3 and 2/3 of on-the-job time
Stooping, kneeling, crouching or crawling - Approximately less than 1/3 of on-the-job time
Talking or hearing - Approximately greater than 2/3 of on-the-job time
Weight lifted/Force exerted - An average of approximately up to 10 pounds, non-continuously
Physical demand requirements listed are primarily applied to ability to lift and move paper supply,
client files, etc.

Vision - Close vision (c|ear vision at 20 inches or less)

Driving - Approximately less than 1/3 of on-the-job time

Travel/Work Schedule

•  Occasional out-of-state travel for professional conferences, training or presentations (generally
less than one week for each occurrence)

•  Occasional local or In-state travel for community presentations and/or stakeholder meetings

•  Schedule may fluctuate based on workload

Updated February 2019 2 | Page



Contractor Name:

Name of Contract:

KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Institute for Community

Alliances

Homeless Management

Information System (HMIS)

BUDGET PERIOD:, • SI-Y;2U19 (4/1/19 -b/30/19).
'  ' , L • ' • • < V
,  ̂ ^ [,<r • • . C : • ,

'f •••

NAME'- .

,  - m' ' -s . . - V - . ' - >"•
'  , ' ' 1, • i f

y ;■
.V t;;.- •; '

JOB TITLE ; V

ir •!; •

"h' " ' '

''*SALARy
PERCENT PAib FROM

THIS CONTRACT "

..AMOUNT,
PAID.FROM ;
; 'THISv--

CONTRACT'
Meqhan Morrow-Raftery Proiect Manager $67,370 15.63% .  $10,530.00

Jesse Dirkman
Data Analyst/Report
Specialist $80,920 2.50% '' $2.bb.bo

To Be Determined System Administrator $59,500 15.62% :  '$9;295.00
To Be Determined Report Specialist $63,800 7.34% $4,680.00

...,1 I • . "t-
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request) r. , $26,528.00

.  BUDGET PERIOD:, . SHY 2U20 (//1/19- 6/30/20)- ,

umB . ' JOB TiTLE ; ' r 1 ■ ,SALARY:
PERCENT PAID FROM

',^:TH|S CONTRACT,

-AMOUNT

.PAID FROMv
THIS

.CONTRACT -

Meghan Morrow-Raftery Project Manager $67,370 40.00% .  $26;948:00

Jesse Dirkman
Data Analyst/Report
Specialist $80,920 10.00% ' $8,092.00

New Hire (A) System Administrator $59,500 100.00% $59:500.00
New Hire (B) System Administrator $59,500 100.00% - $59,500.00
To Be Determined Report Specialist $63,800 35.00% $22,330.00
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request) $176,370100

ro IVBUDGET PERIPD:: • ;= SFV 2021 (7/1/20..-,6/30/21). ;'
j - ; ,' ' : r

NAME "i'.."'

;> V ■ - . . "
•  *' . ^ • ' - • '' I. 't-

•.r ^ - . j •

JOBTITLE '■ = t;.
'• C ' •

SALARY

"  ■ >■ ■ ..

PERCENT:PAID FROM
'  THIS CONTRACT

AMOUNT,
PAID FROM'.

THIS ..
-CONTRACT

Meghan Morrow-Raftery Proiect Manager $69,390 20.00% ■ ^$13,878.00

Jesse Dirkman
Data Analyst/Report
Specialist $82,535 5.20%

V ' '

,; ^ '$4',292;oo
New Hire A from 2020 System Administrator $59,500 52.00% $30,940:00
New Hire B from 2020 System Administrator $59,500 52.00% . ' $30,940:00
To Be Determined Report Specialist $63,800 18.00% '  $11,485.00

. ■ ' ■ • ,

TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request) > $91,535.00


